
City of Garden Grove 
 

INTER-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 
 
 
To: 
 

Matthew Fertal From: Charles Kalil 

Dept: City Manager Dept: 
 

Information Technology 

Subject: LEASE OF NEW MULTI-FUNCTION 
COPIERS 

Date: 
 

November 27, 2007 

 
 
OBJECTIVE 
 
City Council approval to lease 22 new Multi-Function Copiers, including related 
supplies, maintenance and support services. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City owns 22 copiers that produce nearly 600,000 copies per month.  Eighteen 
of these copiers have been in operation at the City between six and nine years.  
Based on age and usage, these machines are increasingly experiencing down time.  
This decreases staff efficiency and the ability to complete projects in a timely 
manner.  This situation also applies to the City’s fax machines.  Maintenance 
contracts are no longer available for the fax machines and most replacement parts 
are obsolete or extremely expensive. 
 
In June, the City issued an RFP for 22 multi-function copiers that could also provide 
scanning, faxing, and network printing services.  Twelve bids were received.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
A source selection committee (SSC) with four members was formed to evaluate 
the RFP responses.  Purchasing requested additional information and clarifications 
from each vendor by memorandum.  After evaluating the clarified bids, a 
competitive range was set using the six vendor proposals that met the 
specifications of the RFP.  The SSC performed site visits and viewed product 
demonstrations by these six vendors, which are listed below. 
 

COMPANY MONTHLY 
LEASE AMOUNT 

MONTHLY LEASE 
w/SALES TAX 

FINAL SSC SCORES 
11/02/07 

Ricoh  $9,906.15 $10,407.24 2940 
Danka 1 (Toshiba) $9,846.59 $10,609.70 2780 
Danka 2 (Canon) $9,571.46 $10,313.25 2774 
MWB $5,650.11 $6,087.99 2650 
Toshiba $10,175.61 $10,964.22 2628 
CBE $9,222.03 $9,936.74 2360 
Ikon $11,277.55 $12,151.56 2244 
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The SSC determined that Ricoh Business Solutions “Ricoh” offered the proposal that 
best met all of the City’s requirements.  In addition to product quality and pricing, 
customer service and ability of the vendors to deliver their proposal were 
considered.  Referrals for vendors were contacted and the vendors’ market 
presence and reputation were researched. 
 
Ricoh has proposed a 60-month lease of 22 multi-function copiers including 
maintenance, delivery, installation, training, and toner cartridges.  As part of the 
installation process, Ricoh will uninstall and remove the existing copiers. The 
proposal also includes a $1 buy out option for each copier at the end of the lease. 
 
These new multi-function copiers offer several features that will improve 
productivity and reduce costs.  With network printing functionality, large jobs can be 
sent directly from a computer to a copier for printing and finishing.  “Scan to email” 
and “scan to folder” options will enable users to convert hard copy documents into 
electronic PDF files. 
 
Fax capabilities will eliminate the need for a separate fax machine in most locations.  
Outbound faxes can be sent directly from a computer and inbound faxes can be 
routed via email, reducing the number of faxes that must be printed and then 
distributed. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Based on Ricoh’s proposal, the cost of leasing the new multi-function copiers would 
be $10,407 per month, including toner and maintenance.  The same expenses for 
the copiers being replaced totaled $14,766 per month.  Multi-function copiers will 
also eliminate the expense of replacing and maintaining fax machines.  The funds for 
this agreement were approved in the 2007 – 2008 fiscal year budget. 
 
COMMUNITY VISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 
The new multi-function copiers will help foster an informed community by enhancing 
the City's ability to communicate with the general public, community organizations 
and service providers. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

 
• Award the proposed 60-month lease for 22 Ricoh multi-function copiers to 

DDL Public Finance LLC; and 
• Award the proposed 60-month maintenance agreement to Ricoh Business 

Solutions; and 
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• Authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to execute the 60-month lease 
agreement with DDL Public Finance LLC on behalf of the City of Garden 
Grove; and 

• Authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to execute the 60-month 
maintenance agreement with Ricoh Business Solutions on behalf of the City 
of Garden Grove. 

 
 
 
CHARLES KALIL 
Information Technology Director 
 
 
 
By:  Keith Winston 
       Senior Systems Analyst 
 
Attachments:  1.  RFP NO. S-1006 Evaluation Memo 
     2.  Lease Agreement with DDL Public Finance LLC 
     3.  Maintenance Agreement with Ricoh Business Solutions 


